FLORIDA BOARD OF GOVERNORS

325 West Gaines Street — Suite 1614 — Tallahassee, Florida — 32399-0400
(850) 245-0466 — www.flbog.org

February 4, 2008

The Honorable Arthenia L. Joyner The Honorable Durell Peaden, Jr.
Florida Senate Florida Senate

Room 224 Senate Office Building Room 222 Senate Office Building
404 S. Monroe Street 404 S. Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1100 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1100

Dear Senators Joyner and Peaden:

The Board of Governors Office of the Chancellor is appreciative of the opportunity to
provide its observations with respect to the Johnnie B. Byrd, Sr. Alzheimer’s Center and
Research Institute (“the Center”). We understand that the Florida Legislature is keenly
interested in the Center’s optimal governance structure, management, research agenda,
and accountability, especially in a challenging fiscal climate.

We must recognize the Center’s potential importance to the well-being of Florida’s
citizens, as this very debilitating disease affects many Florida families. Therefore, the
Board of Governors hopes that the Center maintains a high profile, a statewide mission, a
robust research agenda, and a sufficient and predictable funding stream in order to fulfill
its potential.

Our observations are based on an initial overview and understanding of the history,
operations, challenges, and opportunities associated with the Center. This review has
involved the chancellor, the vice chancellor responsible for research and economic
development, the chief of staff, the general counsel, the director of governmental affairs,
and the director of communications.

This team has had the opportunity to conduct a review that included a site visit of the
Center on January 14, 2008. There, the team toured the facilities, received an overview
presentation on the Center’s work, and met with key administrators and several of the
researchers. Members of the team personally met with key members of the Center’s board
of trustees, including the chair of the Center’s Board Finance Committee, and conducted
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teleconferences with the board chair and with former Speaker of the House Johnnie Byrd,
Jr. The Chancellor’s Office also had the opportunity to meet with key representatives of
the University of South Florida including the president, the vice president for research, the
vice president for health affairs, and the provost, to understand the abilities and desires of
the University to assume a more formal relationship with the Institute. Finally, members
of the team attended the highly informative Senate Workshop regarding the Center held in
Tampa on January 14, 2008.

In addition, the Chancellor’s Office has had the opportunity to review documentation with
regard to the Center. This has included but is not limited to the following:

e Organizational structure documentation, position descriptions, letters of
employment, and financial information with regard to certain internal Center staff
and outsourced Center personnel;

¢ Information with regard to board members, board meetings and minutes, board
actions, and the actions of the board’s executive committee;

¢ Information with regard to facilities and plant operation and maintenance;

e Statutory language, articles of incorporation, and previous agreements between the
Center and the Florida Board of Education;

e Business plans, operating budgets, and documentation regarding general liability
coverage;

e Financial audits and annual reports;

e Documentation regarding grant research guidelines, grant and research awardees,
conflict of interest, confidentiality, and non-disclosure.

Subsequent to the site visit and review of documentation, the Office of the Chancellor
makes the following observations:

1. Regardless of the future governance of the Johnnie B. Byrd, Sr. Alzheimer’s Center
and Research Institute, its statewide mission and focus can and should be
maintained.

2. If the Center were to merge with the University of South Florida, on whose campus
it sits, fiscal efficiencies would be achieved. While the University is the more

appropriate entity to quantify such savings, we base this observation on the
following:

e Areview of the Center’s number and associated responsibilities of mid-level
administrative positions leads us to believe that, when combined with






